
May 14, 2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Agenda 

 

Bedford County Board of Commissioners 

Commissioner Board Meeting 

Date: Tuesday, May 14, 2024  

Time: 7:00 PM 

Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom 

Agenda 

Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham 

Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance 

Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing 

Roll Call: County Clerk Donna Thomas 

Minutes Approval: 

1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes from April 09, 2024 - Placed on the agenda without 

a recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee (unanimous).   

Public Comment Period: 

Elections & Confirmations: 

2. Elect Notaries for June 2024 - Placed on the agenda by the Rules & Legislative Committee 

(unanimous). 

Presentations: 

3. Chris White, Bedford County Planning Director, receives the 2024 American Planning 

Association's John Keller Merit Award for Planning Initiative, based on his design and 

development of the Bedford County Renewable Energy Overlay Zone Model. 

Resolutions: 

4. Resolution 24-16 - Capital Outlay Note- Placed on the agenda by the Financial Management 

Committee (unanimous). 

Proposed Capital Outlay Projects                  Projected Cost 

     a. Liberty School Wing                                    3,364,859 

     b. Juvenile Facility                                           6,049,550 

     c. Surplus Facility                                               600,000 

     d. Public Safety Training Range                         154,000 

     e. NCRS Office Expansion at Ag Ctr                   25,000 

 

5. Resolution 24-17 - Litter and Trash Collecting Grant-Placed on the agenda by the Financial 

Management Committee (unanimous). 

Additional Items by Standing Committees: 

Rules and Legislative Committee:  None. 

Law Enforcement Committee: None. 

Courthouse and Property Committee: None. 

Financial Management Committee: 

6. Quarterly Financials 

7. Surplus Property - BOE 

8. Surplus Property - Highway 

9. Right-of-Way and Road Cut Permits 

10. BCEMS Write-Offs 

Other Business: 

11. Securus Technology Value Solutions Contract for Body Scanner, Sheriff's Department - Placed 

on the agenda due to time constraints by signature of Commissioners Greg Vick and Scott 

Johnson 

Announcements 

Adjourn 

                         /s/ Chad D. Graham        

Chad D. Graham, Bedford County Mayor 

 

1



File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes from April 09, 2024 - Placed on the agenda without a 

recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee (unanimous).  

2



Bedford County Board of Commissioners
Commissioner Board Meeting
Date: Tuesday, April 09, 2024
Time: 7:00 PM
Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom

Minutes
Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham
Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing
Roll Call: County Clerk Donna Thomas

PRESENT
Bill Anderson
John Boutwell
Jason Boyette
Janice Brothers
Anita Epperson
BiffFarrar
Scott Johnson
Eric Maddox
DianeNeeley
Sylvia Pinson
Julie Sanders
Tony Smith
Adam Thomas
Mark Thomas
Troy Thompson
Greg Vick .
Linda Yockey

Minutes Approval:
1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes fromMarch 12,2024 - Placed on the agenda

without a recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee (unanimous).

ABSENT
Drew Hooker

Mark Thomas made a motion to approve minutes as written. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by
voice vote.

Public Comment Period:

None

Elections & Confirmations:
2. Elect Notaries for April 2024 - Placed on the agenda by the Rules & Legislative Committee

(unanimous).
Motion to approve by Vick. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by voice vote.

BBDPORD COUNTY CLBRX
DONNA THOMAS COUNTY CLBU

100 PUBLIC SQ STB 104
SHELBYVILLETN 37160

Telephone 931-684-1921
Pax 931-685-9590

Notaries to be elected April 09,2024

AMY CARNEY
MICHAEL J CLEMENTS
TINA DAVENPORT
NATASHA EDDE
JESSICA GILL
SHELLEY LOWORN

LETHA MARLOW
FERNANDA PEREZ
SONJA H PIMENTAL
TRICINA PRATER
RUBY STALLINGS
YOLETIE TAYLOR

3. Board of Equalization Appointments
Graham put forth Larry Hasty, Debbie Flippo, Reid Farmer, Ed Kowalski (alternate), Joanne
Gaunt (city representative). Motion to approve byMark Thomas. Seconded by Pinson. Passed
by voice vote.

4. Building Code of Appeals Appointments
Graham put forth Mark Thomas, Mark Clanton, Jeff Sweeney, Judy Gambill, and Tommy
Johns. Yockey made a motion to approve. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by voice vote.

5. Planning Commission Appointments
Graham put forth Larry Hasty and Jay Graham. Vick made a motion to approve. Seconded by
Anderson. Passed by voice vote.

April 09, 2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
3

Item 1.



Presentations: None.

Resolutions:

6. Resolution 24-15 - A Resolution Urging Expedited Completion of the Shelbyville Bypass,put
forth by Commissioner John Boutwell with endorsement (4-0) of the Rules and Legislative
Committee.

Motion to approve by Mark Thomas. Seconded by Boutwell.

Graham stated that the resolution will be sent to TDOT and copied to Pat Marsh, Shane Reeves,
and the governor's office.

Motion passed by voice vote.

RESOLUTION No. 24-15

Bedford County Resolution Urging Expedited Completion of tbe Sbelbyville Bypass

WHEREAS, the completion of the new Shelbyville Bypass (State Route 437) from US 41-North/State
Route 16to Highway 231 has significantly contributed to the mobility, economic development, and safety
of Bedford County;

WHEREAS, the Shelbyville Bypass was designed to enhance access to industrial developments within
Bedford County and provide an alternate route for commercial traffic, thus relieving congestion in
downtown Shelbyville; and

WHEREAS, the ongoing expansion and development projects in the vicinity of the Shelbyville Bypass,
such as the newCartwright ElementarySchool.the TCAT-Shelbyvillecampus, the Uncle Nearest Premium
Whiskey distillery expansion, Tennessee Downs Auto Club track, and Vanderbilt Bedford Hospital,
indicate a substantial increase in economic activity and population growth in the 231 Highway North area;
and

WHEREAS, projections based on population growth trends indicate a significant increase in student
enrollment in Bedford County schools, necessitating the need for adequate transportation infrastructure to
support the growing population; and

WHEREAS, the completion of the Shelbyville Bypass expansion from Highway 231 North to Highway
41-A North would further improve traffic now, enhance connectivity, and accommodate the anticipated
increase in vehicular traffic associated with the aforementioned development projects and population
growth;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVE.D by the BedfordCounty Board of Commissioners:

1. The Tennessee Department of Transportation (TOOT) is hereby urged to expedite the completion
of the Shelbyville Bypass expansion fromHighway231 North to Highway41-A North, in order to
accommodate the growing transportation needs of Bedford County and facilitate continued
economic development.

2. TOOT is further urged to prioritize funding and resources necessary for the timely completion of
this critical infrastructure project, recognizing its significance in supporting the current and future
growth of Bedford County.

This resolution shall be transmitted to the Tennessee Departmentof TransportationCommissioner,
Butch Eley, as well as relevant state and local officials,to express the urgent need for action on this
matter.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVE.D, that the Bedford County Board of Commissioners remains committed
to working collaboratively with state and local stakeholders to ensure the timely and successful completion
of the Shelbyville Bypass expansion for the benefit of all residents and businesses in BedfordCounty.

PASSEDAND SO ORDERED THIS_!i_ DAYOF _Af-_7l.-_"_' __ , 2024.

c~f2;"£f==
kQ!Dv\i fA ;J/!,fJnW.,./

Donna Thomas, County Clerk

Additional Items by Standing Committees:

Rules and Legislative Committee: None.

Law Enforcement Committee: None.

4

Item 1.



Courthouse and Property Committee: None.

Financial Management Committee:

7. BOE Budget Amendment No.3 - Deferred at March 12, 2024 Commission Meeting.

Motion to approve by Brothers. Seconded by Vick. Passed by voice vote.

A copy of the Budget Amendment is onfile in the Clerk's office.

8. BOE Budget Amendment No.4

Motion to approve by Mark Thomas. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by voice vote.

A copy of the Budget Amendment is onfile in the Clerk's office.

9. County Budget Amendment No.3

Motion to approve by Smith. Seconded by Yockey.

Farrar asked for explanation for the $224K to local health services and the $450K to economic
and community development. He said after the sale of the hospital there was $7 or $8 million in
restricted fund balance, but this will bring it down to $2.5M.

Finance Director Robert Daniel explained that the restricted fund balance consists primarily of
traffic fines, which must go to courthouse and jail renovation, and opioid funds. The $224K is
opioid money that has to go to the opioid committee for opioid abatement. The $450K is a grant
from the state for Uncle Nearest. The county isjust the flow through for those funds. As to the
hospital money, this report shows the assigned fund balance as $9M - more than $5M of that is
hospital money and the remaining $4M is held back for outstanding purchase orders.

Motion passed by voice vote.

A copy of the Budget Amendment is onfile in the Clerk's office.

10. Quadient Postage Meter Contract for Finance Department

Motion to approve by Yockey. Seconded by Brothers. Passed by voice vote.

Postage Meter Rental Agreement

Product: Quadient IX1

Ecsylnk (Quodlel"lf PoStoge Funding ond LAN required)

Billing Frequency: Q"""."'I
Monthly Poyment $21.24(PIv, """':,.01< '0"')
Shipping and h::moling: $19.99

Number of Months: 36

Products: 10 III Scale

Service Products: Depot Molntenor.ce
, Role Change Protection

Bliling CSNlr: 60957376

Company Nome: BEDFORD COUNTY FINANCEDEPT Compo(\\1 Nome: BEDFORDCOUNTY FINANCEDEP'f

DBA:

Adoress: 200 Dover SI Ste 102
SHELBYV1LLE,TN37160

Contact: HEIDI FARRIS

Address: 200 Dover SI Sic 102
SHELBYVILLE,TN37160

Ernel!:heldl.forrls@bedfordcountlltn,com

Contact: HEIDI FARRIS

Emoll: heldlJorrls@bedfordcountytn,com

Phone: (931) 685·2024 Fox:
Phone: (931) 685-2024 fox'

Ofhce#: 9120· De. Imaging & Moiling. Inc
MainPost Office I Moll Drop:

Post Office ZIP Code:

Oliieell: 9120 - De. Imaging & Moiling, Inc
Moln Post Office / Mol! Drop Off:

Post Office ZIP Code:

Offer Valid Unlll:(Volid UntiI.MM,DD.YVYY}

, Postoge FvncJln9Option: Qvoct!.nt?O.,og. Funding

, Use my POC/TMS Account #: GlJ
My POC/TMS IIccount#: 8059443

Dote Sent Z/29/2024

Reploces Meter SIN: 14817231

E1lslln9 costomers who CUl'rtt'!t1yh..H"Idthe Pos.lu~eO<(;.ovnitv ACH Oebl.lwill I'rOI'be (onverled fOc Postoge FtJndlt!gA':COllnf

vnk~$sfnltkAt:d here:

Approval & Terms
Gtdcfuodby ~~t. tnc's SI.,lStOl1'1Ob'-eOe.sl9f\ and Responsible.MOr)UfOCl.urmQPOlicy.~f Product$:me\;' contain reused compone.nts..For'more fnforMctlQn visIt
tw~I!lXlktplcom/qm,">td·'1Wptl¥krtnljlbk1"$-.'$ml"'O!W'rrn!m}kK!4im

ThiSdocvmenl ccoseu 01 0 Po!>to~eM~:r:~Rentol Agfeemenl-ond on online Sltfvk:es ond SoftworE:AQreem-enlw"lt"Quodlenl. h'1-e.. '(our ~f9i)()furt':'ccesnuaes on
otter to enter Into $vChogreemenlS, Ofld ccknow1~s that you hove recevee. reod, and OQree10011appll<;nbJeterms and conditIOn!. (VeaiOnRental- 'rerms-vn-
202(3).whJc:hc-e olw evencere 01 "ups:llqV<ldlenUefm$'(:OI'n/f'tt)nIQ!~ fermfi-Vll·2023,and thaI 'vav ere Q1ithorlZtd to Sign the 09re,e.m~tl on b"hc!f of the
CI.,ISfomef 1d000lill«i above. Tke QPpliC.obl.e 09recments wm becomE! b1t'idftl9on the comp-O-l1les:~\tnlma,.1 ot)OYe onhJ ofter on ovthcrlltld I.ndhr$d\mi OC(ept5 \jovr
ofter O'J s.lqn1n9below. or when the eQv!pment 1$shipped to 'JOU.

Nome:
TIUe:
Dote: Authorized Signature:

CQrel Pe'.'$( pe'er.@qucdlenLCOfn PH: 2O~'301'391; Ext. FAX:203-301-2644
Q.uOd~t. Inc. .78 Wh•• ~rs Forms AQQd. Mllfol'll. CT 06<61

April 09, 2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes

(

5

Item 1.



Q3 Reports:

II. Clerk & Master - Absent

Circuit Court Clerk/Driving School Director - Absent, submitted written report.

County Clerk - Donna Thomas presented written report.

Director of Schools - Dr. Tammy Garrett updated the commission on building program
progress, graduation dates, CTE classes, and the use of growth money.

Economic Development - Shane Hooper reported on workforce development, tourism,
economic development, and the chamber of commerce.

Election Registrar - Absent, submitted written report.

Highway Superintendent - Mark Clanton presented written report.

Property Assessor- Ronda Clanton reported on personal property, assessment change notices,
and the progress of the )'d quarter inspection cycle. She talked about the proposed bill to
shorten the reappraisal cycle.

Register of Deeds - Absent, submitted written report.

Trustee - Tonya Davis presented written report.
Other Business:

There will be an attorney-client session after the meeting tonight.
Announcements

• Marsha Blackburn will be at Cooper Steel Arena, Hall of Fame Room on April 19.
• Chamber Luncheon, May 7, 11:30,Mayor Graham will be the guest speaker.

Adjourn

Meeting adjourned at 8:07 p.m.

Attestation

1certify that the minutes were completed on the 12thday of April 2024 and delivered to the Bedford
County Mayor's office.

DonnaThomas
BedfordCountyClerk

I certify that I received these minutes on the /S day of April 2024.

ChadGraham
BedfordCountyMayor

6

Item 1.



File Attachments for Item:

3. Chris White, Bedford County Planning Director, receives the 2024 American Planning Association's 

John Keller Merit Award for Planning Initiative, based on his design and development of the Bedford 

County Renewable Energy Overlay Zone Model.

7



8

Item 3.



File Attachments for Item:

4. Resolution 24-16 - Capital Outlay Note- Placed on the agenda by the Financial Management 

Committee (unanimous).

Proposed Capital Outlay Projects                  Projected Cost

     a. Liberty School Wing                                    3,364,859

     b. Juvenile Facility                                           6,049,550

     c. Surplus Facility                                               600,000

     d. Public Safety Training Range                         154,000

     e. NCRS Office Expansion at Ag Ctr                   25,000

9



 

 

 

                                                  RESOLUTION 24-16 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE BY THE COUNTY MAYOR AND PROVIDING 
THE DETAILS OF NOT TO EXCEED $10,400,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL 
OUTLAY NOTES AND PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY OF AD VALOREM TAXES IN 

CONNECTION THEREWITH. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the “Governing Body”) of Bedford 

County, Tennessee (the "Issuer") has determined that it is necessary to make certain capital 

expenditures in connection with public works projects as described in Section 9-21-105 of the 

Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, including but not limited to the acquisition, construction, 

improvement, extension, and renovation of the following: (1) public lands, buildings, storage 

facilities and related equipment, (2) school buildings, facilities, vehicles and related equipment, 

(3) parks and recreation buildings, facilities, vehicles, and related equipment, (4) streets, roads, 

bridges, plazas, sidewalks, lighting, drainage, streetscapes and signage and related department 

buildings, facilities, vehicles, and equipment, (5) municipal vehicles, technology equipment and 

related software related to or in connection with the foregoing public works projects;  (6) 

acquisition, construction, and improvement of all other property, real and personal, appurtenant 

thereto or connected therewith, including all utilities, infrastructure and vehicles related to the 

foregoing public works projects and (7) the payment of all legal, fiscal, engineering and 

administrative costs incident to the foregoing and to the issuance of the Notes (as defined below) 

(collectively, the “Project”); and 

 

10

Item 4.



 

 
 

2 

 WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined that the Project is a public works project as 

authorized by Sections 9-21-101 et seq. of the Tennessee Code Annotated and that it may issue 

capital outlay notes for such purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer proposes to issue not to exceed $10,400,000 General Obligation 

Capital Outlay Notes, Series 2024 (the “Notes”) pursuant to authority of Sections 9-21-101 et seq. 

of the Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, to provide financing for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate for this Board to provide the details of the Notes and the 

pledge of revenues thereto at this time. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 

Bedford County, Tennessee, as follows:  

SECTION 1.  In order to provide financing for the Project, the Issuer shall borrow a sum 

not exceeding $10,400,000, and General Obligation Capital Outlay Notes, Series 2024 of the Issuer 

in the principal amount borrowed shall be issued pursuant to Sections 9-21-101 et seq., inclusive, 

of the Tennessee Code Annotated as amended.  It is hereby found and determined by the Governing 

Body that (a) the Project is necessary and in the best interests of the citizens of the Issuer, (b) the 

issuance of the Notes as soon as practicable is feasible and is in the best interests of the Issuer, (c) 

the Issuer will be able to amortize the Notes and all other indebtedness now outstanding, and (d) 

the issuance of the Notes will be in compliance with the Issuer’s Debt Management Policy. 

SECTION 2.  The following terms shall have the following meanings in this resolution 

unless the text expressly or by necessary implication requires otherwise: 

(a)  “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and all 

regulations promulgated thereunder; 

11

Item 4.



 

 
 

3 

(b) “Debt Management Policy” shall mean the Debt Management Policy adopted by 

the Governing Body on November 8, 2011; 

(c)  “Governing Body” shall mean the Board of County Commissioners of the Issuer;   

(d) “Issuer” shall mean Bedford County, Tennessee; 

(e) “Mayor” or “County Mayor” shall mean the duly elected County Mayor of the 

Issuer from time to time. 

(f) “Municipal Advisor” shall mean Cumberland Securities Company, Inc., 

Knoxville, Tennessee. 

(g) “Note Registrar” shall mean the Bedford County Clerk. 

(h) “Notes” shall mean the General Obligation Capital Outlay Notes, Series 2024, of 

the Issuer, in an aggregate amount not to exceed the principal amount specified in Section 1, to be 

dated as of their date of issuance or as otherwise permitted pursuant to Section 8, authorized to be 

issued by this resolution;   

 (i) “Project” shall mean capital expenditures in connection with public works projects 

as described in Section 9-21-105 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, including but not 

limited to the acquisition, construction, improvement, extension, and renovation of the following: 

(1) public lands, buildings, storage facilities and related equipment, (2) school buildings, facilities, 

vehicles and related equipment, (3) parks and recreation buildings, facilities, vehicles, and related 

equipment, (4) streets, roads, bridges, plazas, sidewalks, lighting, drainage, streetscapes and 

signage and related department buildings, facilities, vehicles, and equipment, (5) municipal 

vehicles, technology equipment and related software related to or in connection with the foregoing 

public works projects;  (6) acquisition, construction, and improvement of all other property, real 

and personal, appurtenant thereto or connected therewith, including all utilities, infrastructure and 

12

Item 4.



 

 
 

4 

vehicles related to the foregoing public works projects and (7) the payment of all legal, fiscal, 

engineering and administrative costs incident to the foregoing and to the issuance of the Notes. 

SECTION 3. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to determine the principal 

amount of the Notes not to exceed the principal amount specified in Section 1 to be actually issued 

(which may be in one or more emissions) and to effect adjustments in the date of maturity and 

optional redemption provisions set forth herein as authorized in Section 8.  The determinations 

made by the Mayor, as described above, and the finalization of the details of the Notes and sale of 

the Notes to the purchaser by the Mayor shall be binding on the Issuer and no further action by the 

Governing Body with respect thereto shall be required.   

Prior to the sale of the Notes, the Issuer shall submit a copy of this resolution authorizing 

the Notes to the Division of Local Government Finance for approval together with any additional 

information required.  In its request for approval, the Issuer shall state and demonstrate that the 

proposed sale is feasible, is in the best interests of the Issuer and is in compliance with the County’s 

debt management policy, and that the Issuer should be able to amortize the Notes and all other 

indebtedness now outstanding and any indebtedness anticipated to be issued. 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into an engagement agreement with bond 

counsel for bond legal services in connection with the issuance of the Notes and with the County’s 

Municipal Advisor for municipal advisory services related to the Notes. 

SECTION 4.  The Mayor, either himself or by and through the County’s Municipal 

Advisor, is hereby authorized and directed to contact at least three (3) financial institutions located 

in the State of Tennessee, as determined by the Mayor and Municipal Advisor, and ask them to 

provide a rate or rates of interest for the term or terms of the Notes by informal bid, and the Mayor 

13

Item 4.



 

 
 

5 

is further authorized and directed to negotiate a sale of the Notes to the financial institution that he 

believes in his discretion has provided the most favorable proposal as to such rate or rates. 

SECTION 5.  The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to provide appropriate 

financial information to the proposed note purchasers, provided, however, that no official 

statement shall be required in connection with the sale of the Notes to one or more banks or 

financial institutions that execute appropriate investment letters in connection with such purchase. 

SECTION 6.  The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to sell the General Obligation 

Capital Outlay Notes, Series 2024, to determine the principal amounts of the Notes not to exceed 

the amounts specified in Section 1 to be actually issued (which may be in one or more emissions), 

to effect adjustments in the maturity schedules and optional redemption provisions set forth herein 

as authorized in Section 8, and to sell the Notes at not less than ninety-nine percent (99%) of the 

par value. The determinations by the Mayor, as described above, and the sale of the Notes by the 

Mayor shall be binding on the Issuer and no further action by the Governing Body with respect 

thereto shall be required. 

After the issuance and sale of the Notes and for each year that any of the Notes are 

outstanding, the Issuer shall submit its annual budget to the Division of Local Government Finance 

for approval immediately upon the Issuer’s adoption of the budget. 

SECTION 7.  Subject to the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 6, the Notes shall 

be designated "General Obligation Capital Outlay Notes, Series 2024,” shall be dated as of their 

date of issuance, shall be numbered from 1 upward and shall be of any denomination, including 

but not limited to a single note with principal retirement provisions or notes which mature in 

accordance with the following principal retirement schedule or as otherwise determined by the 

Mayor: 

14

Item 4.



 

 
 

6 

 Fiscal Year Ending Principal Amount 
 
 June 30, 2025  $ 3,330,000    
 June 30, 2026  3,465,000  
 June 30, 2027  3,605,000  
  
 TOTAL $ 10,400,000 
 

SECTION 8.  The Notes shall bear interest, payable not less than annually, as determined 

by the Mayor, at the rates per annum approved by the Mayor, not to exceed five percent (5.0%) 

per annum, shall mature not later than the end of the 3rd fiscal year after the fiscal year of issuance, 

and shall be repaid in substantially level installments of principal and interest in each fiscal year 

after the first fiscal year in which the Notes are issued, as determined by the Mayor in compliance 

with TCA Section § 9-21-604(a)(2). 

The Notes shall not be subject to option of prior redemption, provided that the Mayor may 

make changes in the maturity date and optional redemption provisions as he deems advantageous 

to the Issuer. 

The weighted average maturity of the Notes shall not exceed the reasonably expected 

weighted average life of the Project which is hereby determined to be twenty (20) years. 

SECTION 9.   The County Clerk shall be the initial note registrar (the "Note Registrar") 

with respect to the Notes and shall maintain Note registration records with respect to the Notes, to 

authenticate and deliver the Notes as provided herein, either at original issuance or upon transfer, 

to effect transfers of the Notes, and to cancel and destroy Notes which have been paid at maturity 

or upon earlier redemption or submitted for exchange, transfer or cancellation and to furnish the 

Issuer with a certificate of destruction.  The Note Registrar shall maintain registration books for 

the registration and registration of transfer of the Notes, which books shall be kept in a manner 

that complies with the requirements of Section 149 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

15

Item 4.



 

 
 

7 

amended, and Regulations thereunder (or under corresponding provisions of prior law, if 

applicable) for recordkeeping relating to "registration-required bonds" and in accordance with the 

Tennessee Public Obligations Registration Act (T.C.A. §9-19-101 et seq., as amended). 

SECTION 10.     The Notes shall be payable, both principal and interest, in lawful money 

of the United States of America at a financial institution designated by the Noteholder in the State 

of Tennessee.  Payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Notes shall be 

made upon presentation and surrender of such Notes to the Note Registrar at maturity or upon 

earlier redemption.   

The Notes are transferrable only by presentation to the Note Registrar by the registered 

owner, or his legal representative duly authorized in writing, of the registered Note(s) to be 

transferred with the form of assignment on the reverse side thereof (or attached thereto) completed 

in full and signed with the name of the registered owner as it appears upon the face of the Note(s) 

accompanied by appropriate documentation necessary to prove the legal capacity of any legal 

representative of the registered owner.  Upon receipt of the Note(s) in such form and with such 

documentation, if any, the Note Registrar shall issue a new Note or Notes to the assignee(s) in 

such authorized denominations, as requested by the registered owner requesting transfer.  No 

charge shall be made to any registered owner for the privilege of transferring any Note, provided 

that any transfer tax relating to such transaction shall be paid by the owner requesting transfer.  

The person in whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the 

absolute owner thereof for all purposes and neither the Issuer nor the Note Registrar shall be 

affected by any notice to the contrary, including, but not limited to, any previous transfer request 

not accompanied by acceptable documentation. 

16

Item 4.



 

 
 

8 

The Notes shall be signed by the County Mayor with his manual or facsimile signature, 

shall be attested by the County Clerk by his or her manual or facsimile signature, and shall have 

imprinted or impressed thereon the official seal of the Issuer (or a facsimile thereof). 

The Note Registrar is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver the Notes from time to 

time to the original purchasers thereof or as it or they may designate upon receipt by the Issuer of 

the proceeds of the sale thereof, together with any necessary documentation, and to authenticate 

and deliver Notes in exchange for Notes of the same principal amount delivered for transfer upon 

receipt of the Note(s) to be transferred in proper form with proper documentation as hereinabove 

described.  The Notes shall not be valid for any purpose unless authenticated by the Note Registrar 

by the manual signature of an officer thereof on the certificate set forth herein on the Note form. 

In case any Note shall become mutilated, or be lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Issuer, in its 

discretion, shall issue, and the Note Registrar shall authenticate and deliver a new Note of like 

tenor, amount, maturity and date, in exchange and substitution for, and upon the cancellation of, 

the mutilated Note, or in lieu of and substitution for such lost, stolen or destroyed Note, or if any 

such Note shall have matured or shall be about to mature, instead of issuing a substituted Note the 

Issuer may pay or authorize payment of such Note without surrender thereof.  In every case, the 

applicant shall furnish evidence satisfactory to the Issuer and the Note Registrar of the destruction, 

theft or loss of such Note, and indemnity satisfactory to the Issuer and the Note Registrar, and the 

Issuer may charge the applicant for the issue of such new Note an amount sufficient to reimburse 

the Issuer for the expense incurred by it in the issue thereof. 

No charge shall be made to any registered owner for the privilege of transferring any Note, 

provided that any transfer tax relating to such transaction shall be paid by the registered owner 

requesting transfer.  The person in whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and 

17

Item 4.



 

 
 

9 

regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes and neither the Issuer nor the Note Registrar 

shall be affected by any notice to the contrary whether or not any payments due on the Notes shall 

be overdue.  The Notes, upon surrender to the Note Registrar, may, at the option of the registered 

owner, be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of the Notes of the same maturity in 

any authorized denomination or denominations. 

SECTION 11.  The Notes shall be issued as a single note in substantially the following 

form with appropriate adjustments: 

(Form of Note) 

REGISTERED                                                                                                REGISTERED 

Number _________         $10,400,000.00 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF TENNESSEE 

 
BEDFORD COUNTY 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE, SERIES 2024 
 

 Interest Rate:  Maturity Date:  Date of Note:    
                        as set forth herein _________ __, 2024    

 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Bedford County in the State of 

Tennessee (the "Issuer"), for value received hereby promises to pay to the registered owner hereof, 

hereinabove named, or registered assigns, in the manner hereinafter provided, the principal amount 

hereinabove set forth on the maturity date hereinabove set forth (or upon earlier redemption as set 

forth herein), and to pay interest on said principal amount at the annual rate of interest hereinabove 

set forth from the date hereof until said maturity date or redemption date, said principal and interest 

18

Item 4.



 

 
 

10 

being payable on June 1, 2025, and annually thereafter until this Note matures or is redeemed.  The 

Issuer shall make principal payments as follows:   

 Year Principal Amount 
 
 June 1, 2025  $ 3,330,000    
 June 1, 2026  3,465,000  
 June 1, 2027  3,605,000  
  
 TOTAL $ 10,400,000 
 
 
The unpaid balance owing on this Note may be evidenced by endorsements on this Note or by the 

Registered Owner’s internal records, including daily computer printouts. 

Both principal hereof and interest hereon are payable in lawful money of the United States 

of America.  The Issuer shall make all principal and interest payments with respect to this Note 

directly to the registered owner hereof shown on the Note registration records maintained by the 

County Clerk, as Note Registrar (the “Note Registrar”), and at final payment or maturity upon 

presentation and surrender of this Note, and such payment shall discharge the obligations of the 

Issuer to the extent of the payments so made.   

At the option of the Issuer, this Note may be prepaid and retired by the Issuer at any time 

with or without notice by paying the principal amount hereof and accrued interest to the date of 

such payment and without the payment of any premium, and upon such payment the Registered 

Owner shall surrender this Note for cancellation. 

This Note is transferable by the registered owner hereof in person or by such owner's legal 

representative duly authorized in writing at the office of the Note Registrar, but only in the manner, 

subject to limitations and upon payment of the charges provided in the Resolution, as hereafter 

defined, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Note.  Upon such transfer a new Note or Notes 

of authorized denominations of the same maturity and interest rate for the same aggregate principal 

19

Item 4.



 

 
 

11 

amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor.  The person in whose name this Note 

is registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes and 

neither the Issuer nor the Note Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary whether or 

not any payments due on the Note shall be overdue.  Notes, upon surrender to the Note Registrar, 

may, at the option of the registered owner thereof, be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal 

amount of the Notes of the same maturity in authorized denomination or denominations, upon the 

terms set forth in the Resolution.  The Note Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange 

any Note after the notice calling such Note for redemption has been made, nor during a period 

following the receipt of instructions from the Issuer to call such Note for redemption. 

This Note is issued for the purpose of providing funds to finance (i) capital expenditures in 

connection with public works projects as described in Section 9-21-105 of the Tennessee Code 

Annotated, as amended, including but not limited to the acquisition, construction, improvement, 

extension, and renovation of the following: (1) public lands, buildings, storage facilities and related 

equipment, (2) school buildings, facilities, vehicles and related equipment, (3) parks and recreation 

buildings, facilities, vehicles, and related equipment, (4) streets, roads, bridges, plazas, sidewalks, 

lighting, drainage, streetscapes and signage and related department buildings, facilities, vehicles, 

and equipment, (5) municipal vehicles, technology equipment and related software related to or in 

connection with the foregoing public works projects;  (6) acquisition, construction, and 

improvement of all other property, real and personal, appurtenant thereto or connected therewith, 

including all utilities, infrastructure and vehicles related to the foregoing public works projects and 

(7) the payment of all legal, fiscal, engineering and administrative costs incident to the foregoing 

and to the issuance of the Notes, and is issued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with 

the Constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee, including Tennessee Code Annotated, 

20

Item 4.



 

 
 

12 

Sections 9-21-101 et seq., inclusive, and pursuant to a Resolution duly adopted by the Board of 

County Commissioners of Bedford County, Tennessee, on May 14, 2024. It is hereby certified, 

recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be performed 

precedent to and in the issuance of this Note, in order to make the same a legal, valid and binding 

obligation of Bedford County, Tennessee, have happened, do exist and have been performed in 

regular and due time, form and manner as required by law; that due provision has been made for 

the levy and collection of a direct annual tax, as may be found necessary each year, upon all taxable 

property within Bedford County, Tennessee, sufficient to pay the principal hereof and interest 

hereon as the same become due and payable; that for the prompt payment of principal and interest 

on this Note, the full faith and credit of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged and that this Note 

and the issue of which it forms a part, together with all other indebtedness of the Bedford County, 

Tennessee, do not exceed any applicable Constitutional or statutory debt limit. 

This Note and the income herefrom are exempt from all state, county, and municipal 

taxation in the State of Tennessee, except Tennessee franchise, excise and corporate privilege taxes 

applicable to certain holders. 

If applicable, the following shall be included: 

[This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" designated by the Issuer for purposes of 

Section 265(b) (3) (B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Bedford County, Tennessee, through its Board of County 

Commissioners, has caused this Note to be signed by its Mayor by his manual or facsimile 

signature and countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of its County Clerk under the 

impressed or imprinted seal (or a facsimile thereof) of the Issuer all as of the _____ day of 

____________, 2024. 

21

Item 4.



 

 
 

13 

COUNTERSIGNED:    BEDFORD COUNTY, TENNESSEE  

(SEAL) 

(Do not sign-Form of Note Do not sign-Form of Note 
County Clerk County Mayor 
 

 
Transferable at the office of 
the Bedford County Clerk 

Date of Registration: __________ __, 2024 

This single Note represents the entire issue of Notes issued pursuant to the Resolution 

hereinabove described. 

 Do not sign-Form of Note
 Donna Thomas 

 Bedford County Clerk 
 
 
 
 

(Form of Assignment) 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

_______________________________ whose address is _______________________________ 

[_________________________ (please insert social security number or tax identification 

number)], the within mentioned Note and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Bedford 

County Clerk, as Note Registrar, to transfer the same on the books kept for registration thereof, 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Dated:_________________           
       Registered Owner 

 
      Notice: The signature must correspond 

Signature Guaranteed:     with the name of the registered owner  
      as it appears on the face of the within note 

22

Item 4.



 

 
 

14 

_________________________   in every particular, without alteration or 
      enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

Notice:  Signature(s) must be guaranteed 
by a member firm of a Medallion Program 
acceptable to the Note Registrar. 
 

(No writing in this blank except by the Registrar) 

 

Date of 

Registration 

In Whose Name 

Registered  

Signature 

of Registrar 

      

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

SECTION 12. When the Notes hereby authorized are issued, the same shall be the absolute 

and general obligations of Bedford County, Tennessee, to the payment of which the full faith, 

credit and resources of Bedford County, Tennessee, are hereby irrevocably pledged, and in order 

to provide for the payment of the Notes and the interest thereon, there shall be and there is hereby 

directed to be levied and collected, at the same time and in the same manner as other taxes of 

Bedford County, Tennessee, are levied and collected, a direct, continuing annual tax upon all 

taxable property within the boundaries of Bedford County, Tennessee, in such amount as may be 

23

Item 4.



 

 
 

15 

found necessary each year to provide for the payment of the principal of the Notes and the interest 

thereon, as the same mature and become due. 

It shall be the duty of the tax-levying and collecting authorities of Bedford County, 

Tennessee, in each year while any of the Notes issued hereunder shall remain outstanding and 

unpaid, without any further direction or authority to levy and collect the taxes herein provided for, 

and the rate of taxation to be levied in each year shall be sufficient, after making allowance for 

delinquencies in the payment of taxes and the cost of collection, to provide the sums required in 

each year for the payment of the principal and the interest on the Notes.  Should there be a failure 

in any year to comply with the requirements of this Section, such failure shall not impair the right 

of the holders of any of the Notes in any subsequent year to have adequate taxes levied and 

collected to meet the obligations of the Notes herein authorized to be issued, both as to principal 

and interest. Principal and interest falling due at any time when there are insufficient funds on hand 

shall be paid from the current funds of the Issuer and reimbursement therefor shall be made out of 

the taxes hereby provided to be levied when the same shall have been collected. The tax herein 

provided may be reduced to the extent of direct appropriations from the general funds of the Issuer 

to the payment of debt service on the Notes. 

SECTION 13. Remedies of Noteholders.  Except as herein expressly limited, the 

registered owners of the Notes shall have and possess all the rights of action and remedies afforded 

by the common law, the Constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee and of the United 

States of America for the enforcement of payment of such Notes and the interest thereon and of 

the pledge of the revenues made hereunder and of the covenants of the Issuer hereunder, including 

all the benefits and rights granted by Sections 9-21-101 et seq. of the Tennessee Code Annotated. 

24

Item 4.



 

 
 

16 

SECTION 14.  From the proceeds of the sale of the Notes, accrued interest (if any) shall 

be deposited to the Note Fund of the Issuer and used to pay interest on the Notes at the next interest 

payment date. 

From the remaining proceeds, all costs of issuance and sale of the Notes, including 

necessary legal, accounting, fiscal, printing, and similar expenses shall be paid or provided for. 

The balance of the proceeds from the sale of the Notes shall be deposited with the County 

Trustee and shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer in a special fund 

hereby designated as the "Bedford County, Tennessee, 2024 Capital Projects Fund," (the “Capital 

Projects Fund”) which shall be applied exclusively to pay (i) capital expenditures in connection 

with the Project; and (ii) legal, fiscal, and administrative costs incident to the foregoing; and it 

shall be used for no other purposes. Any Note funds not put to immediate use shall be deposited 

at interest by the County Trustee until needed. The interest arising therefrom shall be used only 

towards retiring the Notes or may be added to Note proceeds and used for the same purposes. 

Money in the Capital Projects Fund shall be secured in the manner prescribed by applicable statutes 

relative to the securing of public or trust funds, if any, or, in the absence of such a statute, by a 

pledge of readily marketable securities having at all times a market value of not less than the 

amount in the Capital Projects Fund.  

SECTION 15.  The Issuer recognizes that the purchasers and holders of the Notes will have 

accepted them on, and paid therefor a price that reflects, the understanding that interest thereon is 

exempt from federal income taxation under laws in force on the date of delivery of the Notes. In 

this connection, the Issuer agrees that it shall take no action which may render the interest on any 

of said Notes subject to federal income taxation and agrees to take all action as may be necessary 

to comply with the provisions of the Code and regulations thereunder in order to maintain or assure 

25

Item 4.



 

 
 

17 

the tax-exempt status of the Notes. It is the reasonable expectation of the Governing Body of the 

Issuer that the proceeds of the Notes will not be used in a manner which will cause the Notes to be 

"arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code, including any lawful regulations 

promulgated or proposed thereunder (or under corresponding provisions of prior law, if 

applicable), and to this end the said proceeds of the Notes and other related funds established for 

the purposes herein set out, shall be used and spent expeditiously for the purposes described herein. 

The County Mayor, County Clerk and County Trustee or any of them, are authorized and directed 

to make such certifications in this regard in connection with the sale of the Notes as they shall 

deem appropriate, and such certifications shall constitute representations and certifications of the 

Issuer. 

SECTION 16. If applicable, the Issuer authorizes the County Mayor to designate the 

Notes as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b) (3) (B) of the Code 

and, if applicable, to covenant that the Notes do not constitute private activity bonds as defined in 

Section 141 of the Code, and that not more than $10,000,000 aggregate principal of obligations 

the interest on which is excludable (under Section 103(a) of the Code) from gross income for 

federal income taxes (excluding, however, private activity bonds as defined in Section 141 of the 

Code and further excluding bonds issued to refund, other than to advance refund, other bonds to 

the extent the amount of the refunding bonds do not exceed the outstanding amount of the refunded 

bonds), including the Notes, have been or are reasonably expected to be issued by the Issuer, 

including all subordinate entities of the Issuer, during the calendar year 2024 (or the calendar year 

of issuance, if different). 

SECTION 17. If the Issuer shall pay and discharge the indebtedness evidenced by any of 

the Notes in any one or more of the following ways, to wit: 

26

Item 4.



 

 
 

18 

(a)  By paying or causing to be paid, by deposit of sufficient funds as and when required 

with the County Trustee, to pay the principal of and interest on such Notes as and when the same 

become due and payable; 

(b)  By depositing or causing to be deposited with any trust company or bank whose 

deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has trust powers (as 

“Agent”), in trust, on or before the date of maturity or redemption, sufficient money or Obligations 

of the United States of America, the principal of and interest on which, when due and payable, will 

provide sufficient moneys to pay or redeem such Notes and to pay premium, if any, and interest 

thereon when due until the maturity or redemption date (provided, if such Notes are to be redeemed 

prior to maturity thereof, proper notice of such redemption shall have been given or adequate 

provision shall have been made for the giving of such notice) and if the Issuer shall, also pay or 

cause to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the Issuer with respect to such Notes, or make 

adequate provision therefor, and by resolution of the Governing Body instruct any such Agent to 

pay amounts when and as required to the Noteholders for the payment of principal of and interest 

and redemption premiums, if any, on such Notes when due; or 

(c)  By delivering such Notes to the Note Registrar, for cancellation by it; then and in 

that case the indebtedness evidenced by such Notes shall be discharged and satisfied and all 

covenants, agreements and obligations of the Issuer to the owners of such cease, terminate and 

become void. 

If the Issuer shall pay and discharge the indebtedness evidenced by any of the Notes in the 

manner provided in either clause (a) or clause (b) above, then the registered owners thereof shall 

thereafter be entitled only to payment out of the money or Obligations of the United States of 

America deposited as aforesaid.   

27

Item 4.



 

 
 

19 

Except as otherwise provided in this Section 17, neither the Obligations of the United States 

of America nor moneys deposited with the County Trustee or Agent pursuant to this Section nor 

principal or interest payments on any such Obligations of the United States of America shall be 

withdrawn or used for any purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of the 

principal and premium, if any, and interest on said Notes; provided, that any cash received from 

such principal or interest payments on such Obligations of the United States of America deposited 

with the County Trustee or Agent, (A) to the extent such cash will be required for such purpose at 

a later date, shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in Obligations of the United States of 

America maturing at times and in amounts sufficient to pay when due the principal and premiums, 

if any, and interest to become due on said Notes on or prior to such redemption date or maturity 

date thereof, as the case may be, and interest earned from such reinvestments shall be paid over to 

the Issuer, as received by the County Trustee or Agent. 

SECTION 18.    This Resolution also establishes the official intent of the Issuer to finance 

costs of the Project by the issuance of the Notes and to reimburse the Issuer for capital expenditures 

made by the Issuer with respect to the Project from other sources prior to the issuance of the Notes, 

including any such expenditures made up to sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of this Resolution. 

SECTION 19.   The provisions of this Resolution shall constitute a contract between the 

Issuer and the registered owners of the Notes, and after the issuance of the Notes, no change, 

variation or alteration of any kind in the provisions of this Resolution shall be made in any manner 

until such time as the Notes and interest due thereon shall have been paid in full except such 

changes as shall be required to assure the validity and/or tax exempt status of the Notes. 

SECTION 20.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be 

held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this Resolution shall remain in 

28

Item 4.



 

 
 

20 

full force and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared that the remainder of the 

Resolution would have been adopted by this Governing Body despite the invalidity of such 

section, paragraph, clause or provision. 

SECTION 21.  All orders or resolutions in conflict herewith be and the same are hereby 

repealed insofar as such conflict exists. 

SECTION 22. This resolution shall take effect from and after its approval, the general 

welfare of Bedford County requiring it. 

 

 

Passed and approved May 14, 2024. 

 
(SEAL)             

     County Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
____________________________ 

County Clerk 

29

Item 4.



 

 
 

21 

******************** 

(Other Business) 

******************** 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board adjourned. 

(SEAL)  

 
ATTEST:     ____________________________________ 
      County Mayor 
  
_____________________________ 
County Clerk 

 
STATE OF TENNESSEE  

COUNTY OF BEDFORD 

I, Donna Thomas, hereby certify that I am the duly elected and qualified County Clerk of 

Bedford County, Tennessee, and as such official I further certify that attached hereto is a true and 

correct copy of excerpts to be included in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners of Bedford County held on May 14, 2024, insofar as same pertains to the 

proceedings in connection with the issuance of not to exceed $10,400,000 General Obligation 

Capital Outlay Notes, Series 2024 of said County. 

WITNESS my signature and official seal this the ________ day of May, 2024.  

 
      ______________________________ 
      Donna Thomas, County Clerk 
      Bedford County, Tennessee 
 

(SEAL) 

 
4879-2928-7865 v.3 
 

30

Item 4.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Resolution 24-17 - Litter and Trash Collecting Grant-Placed on the agenda by the Financial 

Management Committee (unanimous).

31



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 24-17 

Resolution.authorizing.submission.of.an.application.for.a.Litter.and.Trash.Collecting.
Grant. from. the. Tennessee. Department. of. Transportation. and. authorizing. the.
acceptance.of.said.grant¡ 

 

WHEREAS, the Bedford County Highway Department intends to apply for the 
aforementioned grant, during the 2024-25 fiscal year, from the Tennessee Department of 
Transportation, and; 

WHEREAS, the contract for the grant will impose legal obligations upon the Bedford County 
Highway Department; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. Highway Superintendent Mark Clanton is authorized to apply on behalf of the Bedford 
County Highway Department for a litter and trash collecting grant from the Tennessee 
Department of Transportation. 
 

2. Should said application be approved by the Tennessee Department of Transportation, 
then Mark Clanton is authorized to execute contracts or other necessary documents 
which may be required to signify acceptance of the litter and trash collecting grant by 
the Bedford County Highway Department. 
 

Approved. at. the. regularly. scheduled. meeting. of. the. Bedford. County. Board. of.
Commission?.held.on.the.70th.day.of.May?.8680¡ 

 

ATTEST¿ 

 

 

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (     ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (  

Donna.Thomas?.County.Clerk    Chad.D¡.Graham?.County.Mayor 

 

32

Item 5.



File Attachments for Item:

6. Quarterly Financials

33



34

Item 6.



35

Item 6.



36

Item 6.



37

Item 6.



38

Item 6.



39

Item 6.



40

Item 6.



41

Item 6.



42

Item 6.



43

Item 6.



44

Item 6.



45

Item 6.



46

Item 6.



47

Item 6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. Surplus Property - BOE

48



49

Item 7.



50

Item 7.



51

Item 7.



52

Item 7.



53

Item 7.



54

Item 7.



55

Item 7.



56

Item 7.



57

Item 7.



58

Item 7.



59

Item 7.



60

Item 7.



61

Item 7.



62

Item 7.



63

Item 7.



File Attachments for Item:

8. Surplus Property - Highway

64



65

Item 8.



File Attachments for Item:

9. Right-of-Way and Road Cut Permits

66



67

Item 9.



File Attachments for Item:

10. BCEMS Write-Offs

68



69

Item 10.



70

Item 10.



71

Item 10.



72

Item 10.



73

Item 10.



74

Item 10.



75

Item 10.



76

Item 10.



File Attachments for Item:

11. Securus Technology Value Solutions Contract for Body Scanner, Sheriff's Department - Placed on 

the agenda due to time constraints by signature of Commissioners Greg Vick and Scott Johnson

77



STVS/BEDTN-2024-
R012
Prepared for

Bedford County
100 Public Square West, Suite 102
Shelbyville, TN 37160
STVS/BEDTN-2024-R012

RONALD PRINCE
jail administrator.
ronald.prince@bedfordcountytn.gov
9316840893

78

Item 11.



Agreement
This Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) is made by and between
Bedford County with the principal address of 100 Public Square West Shelbyville
TN(herein referred to as “Purchaser”) and Secure Technology Value Solutions, a
Delaware corporation, with principal office located at 2595 Clyde Ave. STE 2, State
College, PA 16801 (herein referred to as “Contractor”), by and through their
respective duly authorized officers (Potential Client and Contractor are both a
“Party” and collectively the “Parties”).

Delivery and Installation 
Contractor shall deliver and install equipment conforming to the "Project
Estimate" below to 100 Public Square West Shelbyville TN within 60 calendar
days at no additional expense to the Potential Client upon the Agreement being
executed by both Parties. Delivery will be coordinated and facilitated by certified
STVS technicians. A fork lift is required for delivery and not supplied by the
Contractor, if the Purchaser has access to a forklift they must be willing to allow

Secure Technology Value Solutions
2595 Clyde Ave
Suite 2
State College, PA 16801
United States

James Turco
jamie@securetechvs.com

STATEMENT
OF WORK1

79

Item 11.



the Contractor access to facilitate the delivery. In the event the Purchaser does not
have access to a forklift, the Contractor will provide one for an additional cost of
$1,000.00 for which the Purchaser is responsible for.

Title to, and risk of loss for, the Equipment shall pass to the Purchaser from the
Contractor at the time of delivery of possession at the Purchaser's facility. 

Initial Warranty
As part of the purchase price, for Two-Years following the date of installation of all
Body Scanners and One-Year following the date of installation of Parcel Scanners,
the Contractor warrants that it shall be free of defects of workmanship and
materials (“Initial Warranty”).

The Initial Warranty includes all parts, labor and other expenses associated with
keeping the body scanner in good working order.

The Initial Warranty includes all hardware and software changes and upgrades
during the InitialWarranty period.

The Contractor shall perform all work required under the Initial Warranty in a
manner as below.

On-site service is generally available Monday to Friday between the business
hours of 8:00 AM Eastern Standard Time to 4:00 PM Eastern Standard Time. If
Purchaser has special requirements, on-site service time can be specially
arranged.

24/7 Toll Free Support Line and 24/7 On-Line Help Desk will be available. If the
problem could not be solved through phone conversation, we will arrive at the site
in 48 hours after getting approval of the Purchaser.

The Initial Warranty does not include damage to the Unit resulting from failure to
use or maintain the body scanner in accordance with the Operator’s Manual or
Owner’s Maintenance Manual (which will be supplied to Purchaser upon delivery
of the Unit), vandalism or intentional damage caused by a correctional officer,
inmate, visitor or any other person. Damage, as a result to the aforementioned,
will result in purchaser being held responsible for costs of repairs. The initial
warranty will continue uninterrupted after incident, should they occur.

 

 

80

Item 11.



Prepared for
RONALD PRINCE
jail administrator.
ronald.prince@bedfordcountytn.gov
9316840893

Included Warranty & Optional Service Agreements HT3000SV
The initial warranty includes a 2-year warranty at no additional cost.
The Purchaser has requested an additional 4-Year Extended Maintenance
agreement that will be enacted after the 2-Year initial warranty is completed.
See line items below.

Products &
Services

Billing
Frequency Quantity Unit price Price

HT3000SV
X-RAY BODY 
SCANNER

1 $132,500.00 $132,500.00

ThermalScan
Thermal Image 
Camera

1 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

Extended
Maintenance
Agreement

4 $12,350.00 $49,400.00

PROJECT
ESTIMATE2 Issued

April 8, 2024
Expires
July 7, 2024

81

Item 11.



One-time subtotal $185,400.00

Total $185,400.00

 General Provisions

 Waivers
The rights and remedies of the Parties to this Agreement are
cumulative and not alternative. Neither the failure nor any delay by
either Party in exercising any right, power or privilege under this
Agreement will operate as a waiver of such right, power or privilege, and
no single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege will
preclude any other or further exercise of such right, power or privilege
or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. To the maximum
extent permitted by applicable law,

(a) no claim or right arising out of this Agreement or the
documents referred to in this Agreement can be discharged by
one Party, in whole or in part, by a waiver or renunciation of the
claim or right unless in writing signed by the other Party;
(b) no waiver that may be given by a Party will be applicable except
in the specific instance for which it is given; and
(c) no notice to or demand on one Party will be deemed to be a
waiver of any obligation of such Party or of the right of the Party
giving such notice or demand to take further action without notice
or demand as provided in this Agreement or the documents
referred to in this Agreement.

Counterparts

THE
CONTRACT3

This Agreement (hereinafter referred to as
“Agreement”) is made by and between
Bedford County with a principal address of
100 Public Square West, Shelbyville, TN(herein
referred to as “Purchaser”) and Secure
Technology Value Solutions, a Delaware
corporation, with principal office located at
2595 Clyde Ave. STE 2, State College, PA 16801
(herein referred to as “Contractor”), by and
through their respective duly authorized
officers (Potential Client and Contractor are
both a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”).

82

Item 11.



This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Any counterpart may be
delivered by facsimile; provided, however, that attachment thereof
shall constitute the representation and warranty of the person
delivering such signature that such person has full power and
authority to attach his or her signature and to deliver this
Agreement.

Entire Agreement
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties with regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and
may only be amended in writing signed by all the Parties hereto.
Neither Party may assign this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the other Party, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

Disputes
Both Parties shall continue performance under the Contract while
matters in dispute are being resolved.
The duties and obligations imposed by the Agreement Documents
and the rights and remedies available hereunder, shall be in
addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights,
and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or
failure to act by the Purchaser or Contractor shall constitute a
waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the
Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an
approval of or acquiescence in any breach hereunder, except as
may be specifically agreed in writing.
The right afforded to the Purchaser under this Section shall be in
addition to any other rights provided by law or set forth in these
Agreement Documents and Specifications. The Purchaser shall
exercise any or all such rights, which individually or conjunctively
will totally compensate the Purchaser for the damages suffered by
the Purchaser, resulting from the default of the Contractor.
Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue.
This Agreement, for all purposes, shall be construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of TN without regard to any conflicts of
laws principles that would require the laws of any other jurisdiction
to apply. Any action or proceeding by either of the Parties to
enforce this Agreement shall be brought only in the courts
situated in and having jurisdiction in Shelbyville, TN. The Parties
hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of such
Courts and waive the defense of inconvenient forum to the
maintenance of any such action or proceeding in such venue. 

Insurance

83

Item 11.



Contractor shall obtain, maintain, and keep in full force and effect
during the installation thru the life of this Agreement all policies of
insurance required by applicable law, such as Workmen’s
Compensation, and other suitable policies of insurance, including
General Liability Insurance in amounts not less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence (combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage), $1,000,000 for personal and advertising injury liability,
$2,000,000 aggregate on products and completed operations, and
$2,000,000 in the general aggregate. Notice: Said policy shall not
terminate, be suspended, or voided, nor shall it be cancelled, nor the
coverage or limits reduced, until thirty (30) calendar days after written
notice is given to the Purchaser.
If Contractor gives such notice, the Contractor shall submit to Purchaser
in writing the reason for such, a letter from new insurance company,
and the new “Certificate of Liability Insurance” with said insurance
overage subject to approval by Purchaser in its sole discretion, provided
that the aforesaid approval shall not be unreasonably withheld where
the new "Certificate of Liability Insurance" meets the minimum scope of
insurance coverages as stated in Section 4.5.5.1.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless Provision
The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Purchaser harmless for any
and all claims, liability, loss, costs, damage or any other expenses which
may accrue to or be incurred by the Purchaser as a result of injury or
damage to any person or property occasioned by any intentional act or
omission by the Contractor, its employees, or agents.

Patent Assurance, Indemnification and Hold Harmless Provision

In the Agreement, the Contractor must affirm that the equipment, hardware,
and software proposed by the Contractor do not infringe on any U.S. patent
or copyright.
The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser, its officers,
agents, and employees, against all claims that the equipment, hardware and
software proposed or supplied through the Agreement; infringe on other U.S.
patents or copyrights. This provision dose not in any way limit the
indemnification and hold harmless provision as stated in Section 4.5.6.

Disclaimer of Warranties
Except for the express warranties and specifications set forth in this
Agreement and any implied warranties of fitness for a particular use or
purpose, the Contractor makes no other representations and grants no
other warranties, express or implied, either in fact or by operation of law,
by statute or otherwise.

Intellectual Property Rights
“Intellectual Property Rights” means patent, trademark, copyright, trade
secret and all other forms of intellectual property rights (in each case in

84

Item 11.



any part of the world and whether or not registered or registrable and to
the fullest extent thereof and for the full period and all extensions and
renewals thereof) and all applications for registration thereof and all
rights and interests thereto and therein.

All Intellectual Property Rights including but not limited to patent,
trademark, copyright, trade secret, etc. used or embodied in the
Contract equipment and technical documentation thereof shall be
deemed to be and remain the property of the Contractor (their original
owner), and no ownership rights of any kind are transferred to the
Purchas Both Parties hereby confirm that the delivery or ownership
transfer of the Contract equipment shall not constitute the transfer or
license of the Intellectual Property Rights.

Confidentiality
"Confidential Information" means, with respect to either party, any and
all information (including, but not limited to, commercial, industrial,
financial, technical, operational, marketing, customers and products
information) in any form belonging to such party except information
which at the relevant time is

(a) known to the public through no act or omission in violation of
this Contract,
(b) furnished to the receiving party by a third party having the
lawful right to do so,
(c) known to the receiving party prior to disclosure hereunder (as
established by written documentation thereof) or
(d) Independently developed by the receiving party without
reference to the Confidential Information.

Except as may be required by law or as may be reasonably necessary to
enforce rights hereunder, each of the Parties agrees that

(a) it shall use Confidential Information belonging to the other
solely for the purposes of this Contract and
(b) it shall not disclose Confidential Information belonging to the
other to any third party (other than its employees with a direct
need to know and guarantee his employees have signed a non-
disclosure agreement to undertake the same confidential
obligations) without the express prior written consent of the
disclosing party.

Except as may be required by law, neither party hereto shall disclose to
any third Parties the contents of this Contract, correspondences
between the Parties (including email and fax), documents and
conversations that contain Confidential Information of the other party
without the express prior written consent of the disclosing party.
The receiving party shall take measures to protect the secrecy of and
avoid disclosure and unauthorized use of Confidential Information. The
receiving party shall exercise the same procedures and safeguards with

85

Item 11.



a degree of care no less than that used in connection with its own
Confidential Information for the purpose of preventing the disclosure of
Confidential Information.
The period for the receiving party to maintain “Confidential Information”
secret shall cover the validity period of the Contract and  five (5)    year(s)
after the expiration or termination date of the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed
on the date and year last approved below. 

Signature

Signature Date

Printed name

Countersignature

PROJECT
ACCEPTANCE4

86

Item 11.



Countersignature Date

Printed name

Download Print

87

Item 11.


	Top
	Item 1.	Commission Minutes
	Regular Monthly Meeting 2024-04-09

	Item 3.	Chris White
	Award

	Item 4.	Resolution 24-16
	Bedford County -  2024 CON Resolution - 2024-04-29

	Item 5.	Resolution 24-17
	RESOLUTION 24-17-Litter and Trash Grant

	Item 6.	Quarterly Financials
	Quarterly Financials

	Item 7.	Surplus Property - BOE
	Surplus Property - BOE

	Item 8.	Surplus Property - Highway
	Surplus Property - Highway

	Item 9.	Right-of-Way and Road Cut Permits
	Right-of-Way and Road Cut Permits

	Item 10.	BCEMS Write-Offs
	BCEMS Write-offs

	Item 11.	Secure Technology Value Solutions Contract for Body Scanner-Sheriff's Department
	Body Scanner contract

	Bottom



